We are talking about this.
Are we talking about this?
this = what
What are we talking about?
…what we are talking about…
I (do) know what we are talking about.
He (does know) knows what we are talking about.

I am sitting here.
She is sitting here.
She has been sitting here.
Has she been sitting here?
here = where
Where has she been sitting?
…where she has been sitting…
…the place where she has been sitting…
We are talking about the place where she has been sitting.
Has she been sitting here?
she = who
Who has been sitting here?
…who has been sitting here…
…the girl who has been sitting here…

She (does know) knows what we are talking about.
The girl who has been sitting here (does know) knows what we are talking about.
Does the girl who has been sitting here know what we are talking about?
Does she know it?

sitting - ülő
a sitting girl - egy ülő lány
a girl sitting here - egy itt ülő lány

The girl who has been sitting here (does know) knows what we are talking about.
The girl who hasn’t been sitting here (does know) knows what we are talking about.
Does the girl who hasn’t been sitting here know what we are talking about?
Why does the girl who hasn’t been sitting here know what we are talking about?
…why the girl who hasn’t been sitting here knows what we are talking about…
I can’t imagine it.
I can’t imagine why the girl who hasn’t been  sitting here knows what we are talking about.
I couldn’t imagine why the girl who hadn’t been sitting here (did know) knew what we were talking about.

I (do) build a table.
Do I build a table?
a table = what
What do I build?
…what I do build…

I (do) build a nice table.
Do I build a nice table?
a nice table = what kind of table
What kind of table do I build?
…what kind of table I (do) build…
You can tell me what kind of table I (do) build.
Can you tell me what kind of table I (do) build?
She can tell me what kind of table I (do) build.

I (do) have to work with her.
Do I have to work with her?
her = who
Who do I have to work with?
…who I (do) have to work with…
The colleague who I (do) have to work with can tell me what kind of table I (do) build.
The colleague who I (do) have to work with can tell me what kind of table I (do) build.
The colleague who I (do) have to work with can tell me what kind of table I should build.
The colleague who I (did have) had to work with couldn’t tell me what kind of table I should have built.


We are going to buy a car.
Are we going to buy a car?
a car = what
What are we going to buy?
…what we are going to buy…
…the car that we are going to buy…
…the car that we were going to buy…

This is cheap.
…that this is cheap…
…that this was cheap…
I (did think) thought that this was cheap.
I thought that the car that we were going to buy was cheap.


I (do) have a mechanic.
 Do I have a mechanic?
a mechanic = who
Who do I have?
…who I (do) have…
…the mechanic who I (do) have…
I thought that the car that we were going to buy was cheap.

The mechanic who I have (did think) thought that the car that we were going to buy was cheap.

Did the mechanic who I have think that the car that we were going to buy was cheap?

Who doesn’t know what it is is stupid.
Is the person who doesn’t know what it is stupid?
stupid = what
What is the person who doesn’t know what it is?






Who are you?
I don’t know who you are.




I like apples, pears and oranges.
I was here yesterday.
Yesterday, I was here.

My friends who live in London are here.
My parents, who live in London, are here.


I sent a letter to my friends who live in London and who are here.


The mechanic who I have (did think) thought that the car that we were going to buy was cheap.
…the fact that the mechanic who I have (did think) thought that the car that we were going to buy was cheap…

We are learning English.
…that we are learning English…

This (does mean) means that.

The fact that the mechanic that I have thought that the car that we were going to buy was cheap (does mean) means that we are learning English.

Does this mean that?

Does the fact that the mechanic that I have thought that the car that we were going to buy was cheap mean that we are learning English?



and
or
but
because
so

…that the fact that the mechanic that I have thought that the car that we were going to buy was cheap (does mean) means that we are learning English…

If it is then that is.


I am going to school.
I would be going to school…

I (do) go to school.
I would go to school…

I (do) learn English.
…that I learn English…
…if I learn English…


I (do) go to school.
I will go to school if I (do) learn English.
I would go to school if I (did learn) learnt English.

I would be going to school if I (did learn) learnt English.
You would be going to school if you learnt English.
Would you be going to school if you learnt English?
You would be going to school if you (did learn) learnt English.
You would have been going to school if you had learnt English.
Would you have been going to school if you had learnt English?

you - te, ti

you all, y’all, you guys, yous - ti


I will go home if you arrive.
If you arrive, I will go home.
If you arrive then I will go home.

We were deeply surprised. - Nagyon meg voltunk lepve.
Deeply, we were surprised. - Odabent, mélyen a szívünkben, mi meg voltunk lepve.



INVERZIÓ

There is a table.

A table is.
A table is there.
There is a table.
Is there a table?
a table = what
What is there?
…what there is…
I don’t know what there is.



It (does go) goes.
Does it go?

It (does exist) exists.
Does it exist?
It doesn’t exist.

I am.
I (do) exist.

The bicycle is full of diamonds.
Is the bicycle full of diamonds?
the bicycle = what
What is full of diamonds?
…what is full of diamonds…
…the bicycle that is full of diamonds…

It exists.
The bicycle that is full of diamonds (does exist) exists.
Does the bicycle that is full of diamonds exist?

Does the bicycle which is full of diamonds exist?


It is existing.

It is an existing thing.



I am wanting…
I am knowing…
I am having…
I am loving…
I am liking…

Are you knowing what you are wanting?

I am having a party.

I am having a shower.



take the bus - buszozni
have breakfast - reggelizni


You are here.
Are you here?
here = where
Where are you?
…where you are…
I don’t know where you are.

You would be here. - Itt lennél.
You should be here. - Itt kellene lenned.
Should you be here?
You shouldn’t be here.
Shouldn’t you be here?

Should you be here?
here = where
Where should you be?
…where you should be…
I don’t know where you should be.

I don’t know where she should be.

She is eating in the library.
Is she eating in the library?
she = who
Who is eating in the library?
…who is eating in the library…
…the girl who is eating in the library…
I don’t know where she should be.
I don’t know where the girl who is eating in the library should be.

eat = have breakfast

I don’t know where the girl who is having breakfast in the library should be.

You can tell me this.
You could tell me this.

You could tell me where the girl who is having breakfast in the library should be.


She has a boyfriend.
Does she have a boyfriend?
…that she has a boyfriend…
…if she has a boyfriend…

You could tell me if she has a boyfriend.
Could you tell me if she has a boyfriend?


You could tell me where the girl who is having breakfast in the library should be.

Could you tell me where the girl who is having breakfast in the library should be and if she has a boyfriend?


She is having a boyfriend.


I don’t know if she is “with him” with him.



I (do) paint the wall. - Lefestem a falat.
I have painted the wall.  - Lefestettem a falat.

I have a dog. - Van egy kutyám.
I have had a dog. - Volt már kutyám.


She (does have) has a boyfriend. - Neki van barátja.
She has had a boyfriend. - Neki volt már barátja.
…that she has had a boyfriend… - …hogy neki volt már barátja…
…if she has had a boyfriend… - …hogy neki volt-e már barátja…

Could you tell me where the girl who is having breakfast in the library should be and if she has (a boyfriend) or (if she) has had a boyfriend?
El tudnád nekem mondani, hogy a lánynak, aki éppen reggelizik a könyvtárban, hol kellene lennie és hogy van-e barátja vagy volt-e már barátja?





You will be happy if I am here.
You would be happy if I were here.


KÖTŐMÓD


…that I am a doctor…

I know that I am a doctor.

I suggest…
I recommend…
I command…


I suggest that you be a doctor.

I wish…

…that you were a doctor.



MŰVELTETÉS


I want you to be here.

I want you to close the door.

I (do) get you to close the door. - 
(Ráveszlek, hogy becsukd az ajtót.) Becsukatom veled az ajtót.
(elérem nálad valami trükkel)

I (do) have you close the door. - 
(Ott vagy nekem te, becsukni az ajtót.)
Becsukatom veled az ajtót.
(természetes helyzet)


I force you to close the door. - 
(Ráerőltetlek, hogy becsukd az ajtót.)
Becsukatom veled az ajtót.
(erővel)

I make you cry. -
Megríkatlak.

I make you laugh. - 
Megnevettetlek.


I allow you to close the door. - 
Megengedem, hogy becsukd az ajtót.

I let you close the door. - 
Hagylak becsukni az ajtót.



I have my TV fixed.
I get my TV fixed.





I say something.
I have said something.

I would have said something.
I might have said something.
Might I have said something?
something = what 
What might I have said?
…what I might have said…
…something that I might have said…
It is something that I might have said.
Is it something that I might have said?

I might not have said it.

It made her cry.
Something that I might have said made her cry.
…that something that I might have said made her cry…
I don’t think that something that I might have said made her cry.




I have said it another way.
I would have said it another way.
I could have said it another way.
Could I have said it another way?
another way = how else
How else could I have said it?
…how else I could have said it…
I don’t know how else I could have said it.

I will not - I won’t
I would not - I wouldn’t
I shall not - I shan’t
I should not - I shouldn’t
I cannot - I can’t
I could not - I couldn’t
I may not - 
I might not -
I must not - I mustn’t



I (do) have to go. - Mennem kell.
I (do) need to go. - Mennem kell./Szükségem van arra, hogy menjek.
I don’t need to go. - Nincs szükségem rá, hogy menjek./Nem kell mennem.
I needn’t go. - Szükségtelen mennem./Nem muszáj mennem.

I didn’t need to go. - Nem volt szükség rá, hogy menjek.
I needn’t have gone. - Nem lett volna szükség rá, hogy menjek./Nem lett volna muszáj mennem.

I should go. - Kellene mennem.
I ought to go. - Illene mennem.

I should have gone. - Kellett volna mennem.
I ought to have gone. - Illett volna mennem.


I 
am 
looking for 
someone 
who is willing to ship the package to me.
Keresek valakit (éppen), aki hajlandó a rakományt elszállítani nekem.



He can swim.
Can he swim?
he = who
Who can swim?
…who can swim…
…someone who can swim…
I am looking for someone who can swim.




I have read the book. - Elolvastam a könyvet.
I will have read the book by Friday. - Péntekre elolvasom a könyvet.
I shall have read the book by Friday. - Péntekre el kell olvasnom (már) a könyvet.
I shall read the book by Friday. - Péntekre el kell olvasnom a könyvet.

I can have read the book by Friday. - Péntekre el tudom olvasni a könyvet.
I can read the book by Friday. - Péntekre el tudom olvasni a könyvet.

 

read [ríd]
read [red]
read [red] 


I can have written the book by Friday. - Péntekre meg tudom (már) írni a könyvet.
I can write the book by Friday. - 
Péntekre meg tudom írni a könyvet.




 















